
IN THE UNITED ST ATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. 

ANDRE MICHAEL FELTS, 
a/k/a "Dre," 
a/k/a "Plug," 

KEVIN MICHAEL FRANCIS, 
a/k/a "Kev," 

RYAN KEEL 

INDICTMENT 

COUNT ONE 

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT: 

CRIMINAL NO. 20-__ 

DATE FILED: , 2020 ----

VIOLATIONS: 
18 U.S.C. § 1594(c) (conspiracy to 
engage in sex trafficking of minors 
- 1 count) 
18 U.S.C. § 159t (a)(l), (b)(2), (c) 
(sex trafficking of minors 
- 4 counts) 
18 U.S.C. § 2 (aiding and abetting) 
Notice of forfeiture 

1. At all times material to this indictment, defendant ANDRE MICHAEL FELTS, 

a/k/a "Dre," a/k/a "Plug," was the leader of a prostitution ring that operated in and around 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, the purpose of which was to obtain money and other items of value 

for the members of the ring. 

2. As part of the prostitution ring, defendants ANDRE FELTS, a/k/a "Dre," a/k/a 

"Plug," KEVIN MICHAEL FRANCIS, a/k/a "Kev," and RYAN KEEL, and other individuals 

known and unknown to the Grand Jury, recruited and enticed young females, including minors, 

to engage in commercial sex acts, harbored and maintained the females at various residences for 

that purpose, and transported and provided the females to males who purchased the commercial 

sex acts. 
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3. As part of the prostitution ring, defendant ANDRE FELTS, a/k/a "Dre," a/k/a 

"Plug," and other individuals known and unknown to the Grand Jury utilized the Internet website 

www. Backpage.com, on which defendant FELTS and others known and unknown to the Grand 

Jury advertised various females, including minors, as available for commercial sex acts. 

4. Defendants ANDRE FELTS, a/k/a "Dre," a/k/a "Plug," KEVIN FRANCIS, a/k/a 

"Kev,'· and RY A KEEL collected a portion of the proceeds from the minors' commercial sex 

acts. 

5. From on or about February 1, 2016, through on or about February 1, 2017, in 

Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants 

ANDRE MICHAEL FELTS, 
a/k/a "Dre," 
a/k/a "Plug," 

KEVIN MICHAEL FRANCIS, 
a/k/a "Kev," and 

RYAN KEEL 

conspired and agreed with each other, and with other persons known and unknown to the Grand 

Jury, in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, to knowingly recruit, entice, harbor, 

transport, provide, obtain, and maintain at least one person, including but not limited to Minor 1, 

Minor 2, Minor 3, and Minor 4, each of whose identities are known to the Grand Jury, knowing 

and in reckless disregard of the fact that such person had not attained the age of 18 years and 

would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act, and having had a reasonable opportunity to 

observe such person, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1591(a)( l), (b)(2), and 

(c). 

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1594(c). 
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COUNT TWO 

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT: 

Between on or about September I , 2016, and on or about January 1, 2017, in 

Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants 

ANDRE MICHAEL FELTS, 
a/k/a "Dre," 

a/k/a "Plug," and 
KEVIN MICHAEL FRANCIS, 

a/k/a "Kev," 

in and affecting interstate commerce, knowingly recruited, enticed, harbored, transported, 

provided, obtained, and maintained Minor I, and aided and abetted the same, knowing and in 

reckless disregard of the fact that Minor I was under the age of 18 years and would be caused to 

engage in a commercial sex act, and having had a reasonable opportunity to observe Minor 1. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1591 (a)(l), (b)(2), and (c), and 2. 
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COUNT THREE 

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT: 

Between on or about October 1, 2016, and on or about January 19, 2017, in Philadelphia, 

in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants 

ANDRE MICHAEL FELTS, 
a/k/a "Dre," 

a/k/a "Plug," and 
KEVIN MICHAEL FRANCIS, 

a/k/a "Kev," 

in and affecting interstate commerce, knowingly recruited, enticed, harbored, transported, 

provided, obtained, and maintained Minor 2, and aided and abetted the same, knowing and in 

reckless disregard of the fact that Minor 2 was under the age of 18 years and would be caused to 

engage in a commercial sex act, and having had a reasonable opportunity to observe Minor 2. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1591(a)( I), (b)(2), and (c), and 2. 
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COUNT FOUR 

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT: 

Between on or about February l , 2016, and on or about February I , 20 l 7, in 

Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants 

ANDRE MICHAEL FELTS, 
a/k/a "Dre," 

a/k/a "Plug," and 
KEVIN MICHAEL FRANCIS, 

a/k/a "Kev," 

in and affecting interstate commerce, knowingly recruited, enticed, harbored, transported, 

provided, obtained, and maintained Minor 3, and aided and abetted the same, knowing and in 

reckless disregard of the fact that Minor 3 was under the age of 18 years and would be caused to 

engage in a commercial sex act, and having had a reasonable opportunity to observe Minor 3. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1591 (a)( 1 ), (b )(2), and ( c ), and 2. 
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COUNT FIVE 

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT: 

Between on or about October 1, 20 16, and on or about February 1, 2017, in Philadelphia, 

in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants 

ANDRE MICHAEL FELTS, 
a/k/a "Dre," 

a/k/a "Plug," and 
KEVIN MICHAEL FRANCIS, 

a/k/a "Kev," 

in and affecting interstate commerce, knowingly recruited, enticed, harbored, transported, 

provided, obtained, and maintained Minor 4, and aided and abetted the same, knowing and in 

reckless disregard of the fact that Minor 4 was under the age of 18 years and would be caused to 

engage in a commercial sex act, and having had a reasonable opportunity to observe Minor 4. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1591(a)(l ), (b)(2), and (c), and 2. 
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NOTICE OF FORFEITURE 

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT: 

1. As a result of the violations of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 

J 591(a)(l), (b)(2), (c), and 1594(c) set forth in this Indictment, defendants 

ANDRE MICHAEL FELTS, 
a/k/a "Dre," 
a/k/a "Plug," 

KEVIN MICHAEL FRANCIS, 
a/k/a "Kev," and 

RYAN KEEL 

shall forfeit to the United States of America: 

(a) any property, real or personal, involved in, used, or intended to be 

used to commit or to facilitate the commission of such violations, and any property traceable to 

such property; and 

(b) any property, real or personal, constituting or derived from any 

proceeds traceable to such violations. 

2. If any of the property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or 

omission of the defendants: 

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due dil igence; 

(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party; 

( c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court; 

( d) has been substantially diminished in value; or 

(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided 

without difficulty; 
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it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 1(c), 

incorporating Title 2 1, United States Code, Section 853(p), to seek forfeiture of any other 

property of the defendants up to the value of the property subject to forfeiture. 

All pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 l (c), and Title 18, United States 

Code, Sections 1594(d) and (e). 

FOREPERSON 
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No. 20-

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

Eastern District of Pennsylvania 

Criminal Division 

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

ANDRE MICHAEL FELTS, et al 

INDICTMENT 

Counts 
18 U.S.C. § I 594(c) (conspiracy to engage in sex trafficking of minors - I count) 

18 U.S.C. § 1591 (a)( I), (b)(2), (c) 18 U.S.C. § 159 1 (a)( I), (b)(2), (c) (sex trafficking o f minors - 4 counts); 18 
U.S.C. § 2 (aidi ng and abetti ng); Notice of Forfe iture 

Filed in open court th is _______________ day. 
Of _________ /\.D. 20 ____ _ 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

INDICTMENT 

DESIGNATION FORM to be used by counsel to indicate the category of the case for the 
purpose of assignment to appropriate calendar. 

Address of Plaintiff: 615 Chestnut Street, Suite 1250, Philadelphia, PA 19106-4476 

Post Office: Philadelphia County: Philadelphia 

City and State of Defendant: Philadelphia, PA 

County: Philadelphia Register number: 77337-066 (Francis) 

Place of accident, incident, or transaction: Eastern District of Pennsylvania 

Post Office: Philadelphia County: Philadelphia 
RELATED CASE, IF ANY: 

Criminal cases are deemed related when the answer to the following question is Ayes@. 

Does this case involve a defendant or defendants alleged to have participated in the same 
action or transaction, or in the same series of acts or transactions, constituting an offense 
or offenses? 

YES/NO: NO 

Case Number: Judge: 
CRIMINAL: (Criminal Category - FOR USE BY U.S. ATTORNEY ONLY) 

1. Antitrust 

2. Income Tax and other Tax Prosecutions 

3. Commercial Mail Fraud 

4. Controlled Substances 

5. Violations of 18 U.S.C. Chapters 95 and 96 (Sections 1951-55 and 1961-68) 
and Mail Fraud other than commercial 

6. General Criminal 
(U.S. ATTORNEY WILL PLEASE DESIGNATE PARTICULAR CRIME AND 
STATUTE CHARGED TO BE VIOLATED AND STATE ANY PREVIOUS 
CRIMINAL NUMBER FOR SPEEDY TRIAL ACT TRACKING PURPOSES) 

18 U.S.C. § 1594(c) (conspiracy to engage in sex trafficking of minors – 1 count); 18 U.S.C. 

§ 1591(a)(1), (b)(2), (c) (sex trafficking of minors – 4 counts); 18 U.S.C. § 2 (aiding and abetting), Notice 

of Forfeiture) 

DATE: 08/25/2020 /s/ Sara Solow 
SARA SOLOW 

Assistant United States Attorney 
File No. 2017R00428 

U.S. v. Andre Michael Felts, et al. 




